Minutes

Meeting of Friday 22 October 2010 Board Room, London

Present

UK Statistics Authority

Sir Michael Scholar (Chair) Lord Rowe-Beddoe (Deputy Chair, ONS) Professor Sir Roger Jowell (Deputy Chair, Official Statistics) Dr Colette Bowe Mr Partha Dasgupta Ms Moira Gibb Ms Jil Matheson Professor Steve Nickell Professor David Rhind Sir Jon Shortridge

Secretariat

Mr Robert Bumpstead Mr Mervyn Stevens

Other Attendees

Mr Steve Newman (Office for National Statistics) for items 5 and 6 Mr Richard Laux (Monitoring and Assessment) for items 8 to 13

Apologies

Mr Richard Alldritt Mr Stephen Penneck

1. Apologies

Apologies were received from Mr Alldritt and Mr Penneck.

2. Declarations of Interest

- 2.1 Professor Nickell informed the meeting that, subject to his recent nomination to the Office of Budgetary Responsibility being endorsed by the Treasury Select Committee, he would be resigning from the Authority Board but hoped to continue as long as possible as a member of the Consumer Prices Advisory Committee (CPAC). The Chair expressed the Authority Board's good wishes to Professor Nickell in his new role and thanked him for his service to the Authority.
- 2.2 There were no other declarations of interest.

3. Minutes and Matters arising from the Previous Meeting

- 3.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 24 September 2010 were accepted as a true and fair account.
- 3.2 There were no matters arising.

4. Reports from Authority Committee Chairs

Assessment Committee

4.1 Professor Sir Roger Jowell reported on the meeting of the Assessment Committee held on 29 September 2010. Ten draft Assessment Reports had been discussed and these would be considered later in the meeting. The Committee had also considered a draft Monitoring Brief on the communication of measures of inflation.

Committee for Official Statistics

- 4.2 Professor Jowell also reported on the meeting of the Committee for Official Statistics held on 5 October 2010. The meeting had received a report on the activities of the Government Statistical Service (GSS) Health and Social Care Theme Group and had received a paper from this Group on the measurement of childhood obesity in the UK. The Committee considered housing market statistics and received an update on the National Statistician's review of these statistics.
- 4.3 The Committee had also considered a draft Monitoring Brief on the use made of Official Statistics and approved its publication on the Authority's website. The meeting had received a report on the benefits delivered by the allocation of Quality Improvement Fund (QIF) money to 17 Government Statistical Service (GSS) projects in 2009/10 and had recommended that future allocations should be made on the premise that the outcomes would be publicised as widely as possible.

Office for National Statistics Board (ONS)

- 4.4 Lord Rowe-Beddoe reported on the meeting of the ONS Board held on 8 October 2010. The Board had received a report from the Director General of ONS and had considered Information Technology (IT) and finance issues. The meeting had also considered the circumstances which led to a delay in the publication of the Quarterly National Accounts in June. The meeting of the ONS Board had been followed by a joint meeting with the ONS Executive which had considered the future direction for ONS over the next few years, particularly in the light of anticipated budget reductions.
- 4.5 Lord Rowe-Beddoe reported that he had chaired an ONS event on 11 October for users and the media on the 'Labour Market through the recession'.

5. Spending Review 2010 (SR10)

5.1 Ms Matheson informed the meeting of the outcome for the Authority's funding for the

next four years under the Government's Spending Review 2010 (SR10). Excluding the funding of the Census, the budget settlement required a 9.3 per cent cash reduction to the Authority's resource baseline over the four years to 2014/15, which after inflation equated to an 18.5 per cent real reduction. Capital funding would be reduced by 39.3 per cent over the four year period. The funding to complete the Census 2011 had been agreed, as well as funding for the Beyond 2011 and Societal Well-being programmes.

5.2 It was too early to know how reductions in the budgets of government departments would impact on statistical production across the GSS. Ms Matheson would report on emerging developments to the next meeting of the Committee for Official Statistics (COS).

6. ONS Business Priorities: Draft Consultation Document [SA(10)63]

- 6.1 Ms Matheson introduced a draft public consultation document on the potential changes to the Office for National Statistics (ONS) work programmes resulting from the Spending Review 2010 (SR10) budget reductions. Key stakeholders would be contacted and the consultation document would be published on the ONS website on 1 November for an eight-week consultation period that would end on 24 December. This would enable the ONS Board to consider the responses at its meeting in January 2011 and to agree business priorities by the end of the financial year.
- 6.2 The meeting made recommendations for improving the draft consultation document. It was agreed that the National Statistician should investigate the feasibility of arranging an Authority event on the wider implications for cuts in statistical outputs across the GSS as a result of reductions in government departments' budgets, and the broader question of what statistics the UK needs.

7. Census 2011

- 7.1 Ms Matheson reported that the Government's Efficiency Reform Group had agreed an exemption to the Government's current expenditure restrictions for costs associated with promoting the Census 2011. The recruitment campaign for field census staff had been launched and there had been a very good response. Lord Rowe-Beddoe would be opening the data-processing centre on 24 November in Manchester.
- 7.2 The meeting noted these developments and agreed that the ONS Census Director should provide a progress report to the December meeting.

8. Retail and Consumer Price Indices: Overview and Update [SA(10)64]

- 8.1 Mr Bumpstead provided an update on developments since the last meeting with regard to the Retail and Consumer Price Indices (RPI and CPI). Following the discussion at the last meeting the Chair had replied on 6 October to the letter of 25 August from Professor David Hand, President of the Royal Statistical Society (RSS) regarding issues that the RSS wanted the Authority to consider with regard to price indices.
- 8.2 The meeting noted that the Consumer Price Advisory Committee (CPAC) intended to publish its report on the ONS website within the next few weeks and that CPAC had also agreed that summary reports of its meetings would be produced and published.
- 8.3 The Authority discussed proposals for the publication of the Monitoring Brief on the communication of measures of inflation and Assessment Report 65:Consumer Price Indices and agreed that a draft of the Monitoring Brief should be considered at the next meeting.

9. Draft Assessment Report 65: Consumer Price Indices [SA(10)65]

Mr Laux presented draft Assessment Report 65: Consumer Price Indices which had

been considered at the meeting of the Assessment Committee on 29 September 2010. The Authority agreed that the draft should be considered further at the next meeting alongside the Monitoring Brief on the communication of measures of inflation.

10. Draft Report to the Transport Committee on Road Casualty Statistics [SA(10)66]

- 10.1 Mr Laux presented a draft of a report that it was proposed should be sent to the House of Commons Transport Committee on the Department for Transport's (DfT) response to the divergence in trends for numbers killed and seriously injured in road traffic accidents. The Authority had published Assessment Report 4: Road Casualty Statistics in July 2009 and this placed certain requirements on the DfT to explain the divergence in the reported trends of deaths and serious injuries.
- 10.2 The Authority welcomed this draft Report and agreed that it should be sent to the Transport Select Committee and published in due course.

11. Post-Legislative Scrutiny [SA(10)67]

- 11.1 Mr Bumpstead informed the meeting that, in accordance with government policy of reviewing the implementation of all new primary legislation three to five years after receiving Royal Assent, the Minister for the Cabinet Office had stated in a recent written answer to a Parliamentary Question that the Cabinet Office would be carrying out such a review into the operation of the *Statistics and Registration Service Act 2007*. The Cabinet Office would be making a report to the Public Administration Select Committee (PASC) in due course. To date, neither the Authority nor the National Statistician had been consulted on this matter.
- 11.2 The Authority noted these developments and agreed that it would wish to be consulted as part of the Cabinet Office review.

12. Official Statistics Orders [SA(10)68]

- 12.1 Mr Bumpstead introduced a paper which gave an overview of the current position with regard to Official Statistics Orders. The Cabinet Office intended to lay the Official Statistics Order 2010, a draft of which the Authority had considered at the meeting on 23 July 2010, before Parliament in early November with the aim that it should come into force shortly thereafter.
- 12.2 The Authority was content with the proposal from the Scottish Government to amend the *Official Statistics (Scotland) Order 2008* by the inclusion of five additional bodies in the Order. The Scottish Government also intended to bring further public bodies within the scope of the Scotland Order by making another amendment to the Order next year.
- 12.3 To date there had been no Official Statistics Orders made by the Welsh or Northern Ireland Assemblies. The Welsh Assembly Government and the Northern Ireland Executive were engaging with the Arm's-Length Bodies (ALBs) for which they were responsible with a view to laying Orders before their respective Assemblies sometime in 2011.
- 12.4 A Government Statistical Service (GSS) task force had made recommendations to the National Statistician and the GSS Heads of Professions (HoPs) Group on how to engage with and support the ALBs who would be brought within the statutory remit of the Authority and the National Statistician. Statistics produced by these bodies would have to comply with the *Code of Practice for Official Statistics*.
- 12.5 In noting these developments, the Authority recognised the different rates of progress across the four countries and that this created some anomalies across the UK where

some bodies would be covered by the UK Order but their counterparts administered by the devolved administrations would not currently be within scope.

13. Draft Assessment Reports 58 to 64 and 66 to 67 [SA(10)69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77]

- 13.1 Mr Laux presented the following nine draft Assessment Reports which had all been considered at the meeting of the Assessment Committee on 29 September 2010:
 - i. Assessment Report 58: Statistics from the National Travel Survey;
 - ii. Assessment Report 59: Statistics on Prescribing and Pharmaceutical Services in England;
 - iii. Assessment Report 60: Statistics on Prescribing in Scotland;
 - iv. Assessment Report 61: Statistics on Transport in Scotland;
 - v. Assessment Report 62: Statistics on Transport in Northern Ireland;
 - vi. Assessment Report 63: Local Government Financial Statistics England;
 - vii. Assessment Report 64: Statistics on Child Protection in Scotland;
 - viii. Assessment Report 66: Lifestyles Compendia; and
 - ix. Assessment Report 67: Pensions Statistics.
- 13.2 Following discussion, the Authority agreed that Assessment Report 64: Statistics on Child Protection in Scotland should be considered further and that the other eight reports should be published subject to agreed amendments.

14. Any Other Business

There was no other business.

Agenda

Friday, 22 October, 2010 Board Room, Statistics House, London, 11:15 - 15:00

Chair:Sir Michael ScholarApologies:Mr Richard Alldritt, Mr Stephen Penneck

1	Minutes and matters arising from previous meeting Declarations of interest	Meeting of 240910
2	Reports from Authority Committee Chairs:	Oral Reports
	 Assessment Committee Committee for Official Statistics ONS Board 	Professor Sir Roger Jowell Professor Sir Roger Jowell Lord Rowe-Beddoe
3	Spending Review 2010 (SR10)	Oral Report
		Ms Jil Matheson
4	ONS Business Priorities: Draft Consultation Document	SA(10)63
		Mr Steve Newman
5	Census 2011	Oral Report
		Ms Jil Matheson
6	Retail and Consumer Price Indices: Overview and Update	SA(10)64
		Secretariat
7	Draft Assessment Report 65: Consumer Price Indices	SA(10)65
		Mr Richard Laux
8	Draft Report to the Transport Committee on Road Casualty Statistics	SA(10)66
		Mr Richard Laux
9	Post-Legislative Scrutiny	SA(10)67
		Secretariat
10	Official Statistics Orders	SA(10)68
		Secretariat

	Other Draft Assessment Reports (AR)	Mr Richard Laux
11	AR 64: Statistics on Child Protection in Scotland	SA(10)69
12	AR 58: Statistics from the National Travel Survey	SA(10)70
13	AR 59: Statistics on Prescribing and Pharmaceutical Services in England	SA(10)71
14	AR 60 Statistics on Prescribing in Scotland	SA(10)72
15	AR 61: Statistics on Transport in Scotland	SA(10)73
16	AR 62: Statistics on Transport in Northern Ireland	SA(10)74
17	AR 63: Local Government Financial Statistics England	SA(10)75
18	AR 66: Lifestyles Compendia	SA(10)76
19	AR 67: Pensions Statistics	SA(10)77
20	Any other business	

Next Meeting: Friday, 26 November, 2010, Statistics House, Newport, 11:15 - 15:00

SA(10)64

Retail and Consumer Price Indices: Overview and Update

Purpose

1. This paper provides an update on developments since the last meeting with regard to the Retail and Consumer Price Indices (RPI and CPI) and makes proposals for the publication of the Monitoring Brief: Communicating Inflation and Assessment Report 65: Consumer Price Indices.

Recommendations

- 2. Members of the Authority are invited to:
 - i. note the Chair's reply to the letter from Professor David Hand, President of the Royal Statistical Society (RSS) at **Annex A**;
 - ii. note plans for publication of Consumer Prices Advisory Committee (CPAC) outputs; and
 - iii. comment on the proposals for publishing the Monitoring and Assessment Reports.

Discussion

- 3. At its last meeting the Authority considered a letter from Professor David Hand, President of the RSS which set out some issues that the RSS wanted the Authority to consider with regard to the RPI and CPI. Following that discussion, the Chair replied to Professor Hand on 6 October and the exchange of correspondence, which has been published on the Authority's website, is reproduced at Annex A.
- 4. The Authority also received a Report from CPAC on its activities during the previous year. It was agreed that ONS should make arrangements for publication of the Report. Since that meeting the Report has been subject to revision and at the time of writing a publication date had not been confirmed.
- 5. It has also been agreed that summary Reports of CPAC meetings will be produced and published. A draft of the first such summary Report will be considered by the next meeting of CPAC on 23 November and published thereafter.
- 6. Work has continued on a draft Monitoring Brief: Communicating Inflation and a draft Assessment Report: Consumer Price Indices. Both Reports were considered at the September meeting of the Assessment Committee. This paper is followed by draft Assessment Report 65: Consumer Price Indices [SA(10)65].
- 7. It is planned to publish the Monitoring Brief alongside the Assessment Report and the Brief will discuss a range of the wider issues in more detail. Whilst the Monitoring Brief is currently in an advanced draft, the Monitoring and Assessment team wants to refine it further in the light of the Board discussion of the Assessment Report. So, pending discussion of the Monitoring Brief at the November meeting of the Authority both documents could be published in early December.

Secretariat, UK Statistics Authority, September 2010

List of Annexes

Annex A Letter from the President of the RSS and Chair's reply

Annex A Letter from the President of the RSS and Chair's reply

These documents have been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see these documents go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/reports---correspondence/correspondence/letter-from-david-hand-to-sir-michael-scholar-25082010.pdf

and

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/reports---correspondence/correspondence/letter-from-sir-michael-scholar-to-professor-david-hand---6-october-2010.pdf

SA(10)65

Assessment Report: Consumer Price Indices

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website as Assessment

Report 79.

To see this document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/

assessment-report-79---consumer-price-indices.pdf

SA(10)66

Draft Report to the Transport Committee on Road Casualty Statistics

Purpose

1. To invite the Authority Board to consider the draft Report to the House of Commons Transport Committee on the Department for Transport's response to the divergence in trends for numbers killed and seriously injured in road traffic accidents.

Recommendation

2. Members of the Board are invited to consider and comment on the draft Report.

Discussion

- 3. The UK Statistics Authority published its Assessment of the Department for Transport's Road Casualty Statistics in July 2009. As part of that Report, the Authority placed a number of requirements on the Department that related to the apparent unexplained divergence in the reported trends of deaths and serious injuries.
- 4. Following the publication of the Assessment Report, the Head of Assessment gave oral evidence in November 2009 as part of the House of Commons Transport Committee's inquiry into the *Performance of the Department for Transport*. The Committee subsequently published its Report in March 2010, which invited the Authority to undertake a specific investigation into the extent to which the Department for Transport has sought an explanation for the unexpected divergence between the number of people killed and those seriously injured in road traffic accidents.
- 5. A draft Report has been prepared for the Committee (**Annex 1**) based on available documents, meetings with statisticians in the Department for Transport, further written evidence from the Department and consultation with experts.
- 6. It is intended to submit this Report to the Committee over the next few weeks, and subsequently to publish the Report in the form of a Monitoring Brief.

Monitoring and Assessment Team, October 2010

List of Annexes

Annex 1 Draft Report to the House of Commons Transport Committee

SA(10)66 Draft Report to the Transport Committee on Road Casualty Statistics

Annex A Draft report to the House of Commons Transport Committee

This report is due to be published as a Monitoring Brief on the UK Statistics Authority website in due course.

The Monitoring Brief will be available at:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/monitoring/monitoring-briefs/index.html

SA(10)67

Post-Legislative Scrutiny

Purpose

1. This paper advises the Authority of a Cabinet Office review of the operation of the *Statistics and Registration Service Act 2007.*

Recommendations

2. Members of the Authority are invited to note the current position with regard to this review.

Discussion

- 3. In March 2008 the government announced its intention to carry out a review of legislation three to five years after receiving Royal Assent. The reviews would be carried out by the relevant government department and then by Parliament through the appropriate select committee. The stated objectives of these scrutinies, as set out in *Post-legislative Scrutiny The Government's Approach* Cm 7320 (March 2008), would be:
 - i. to see whether the legislation is working out in practice as intended;
 - ii. to contribute to better regulation;
 - iii. to improve the focus on implementation and delivery of policy aims; and
 - iv. to identify and disseminate good practice so that lessons may be drawn from the successes and failures revealed by the scrutiny.
- 4. The Authority's founding legislation is now three years old and on 6 September 2010, in written answer to a Parliamentary Question, the Minister for the Cabinet Office stated that 'The Cabinet Office is carrying out post-legislative scrutiny of the *Statistics and Registration Service Act 2007*, in accordance with current policy of reviewing primary legislation and I will submit a Memorandum of Understanding to the Public Administration Select Committee in the autumn'. The Cabinet Office are now planning their review and intend to identify and consult other parties for their view. This will include the Authority. The Cabinet Office will then make a report to the Public Administration Select Committee (PASC) in due course.
- 5. We understand that a particular focus for the Cabinet Office review may be how the Act has been implemented. This would look at information on when and how different provisions of the Act have been brought into operation. It could also look at any provisions in the Act which have not been brought into force, or enabling powers not used, and explain why.
- 6. It is understood that the stakeholders who are to be consulted will primarily be internal to government and this would include statistical Heads of Profession in government departments. The Royal Statistical Society (RSS) will also be approached for its opinions. Cabinet Office are currently devising a pro-forma questionnaire to send out as part of the evidence-gathering for this review. To date, the Authority and the National Statistician have not been involved in this.

Secretariat, UK Statistics Authority, October 2010

SA(10)68

Official Statistics Orders

Purpose

1. This paper provides an overview of the current position with regard to Official Statistics Orders that have been made by Parliament and the devolved legislatures.

Recommendations

2. Members of the Authority are invited to note:

- i. progress with the UK Official Statistics Order 2010;
- ii. the recent correspondence at **Annex A** regarding an amendment to the *Official Statistics (Scotland) Order 2008*;
- iii. the position with regard to Official Statistics Orders in Wales and Northern Ireland; and
- iv. how the Government Statistical Service (GSS) is responding to these developments.

Discussion

- 3. Under the terms of the Statistics and Registration Service Act 2007, statistics produced by any Crown body are Official Statistics, and are thus within the Authority's remit. Statistics produced by non-Crown bodies, for the most part Arm's Length Bodies (ALBs), may only be considered Official Statistics if the producer body is approved as such by an Order of Parliament. UK Orders are the responsibility of the Minister for the Cabinet Office (section 6, subsection 1b of the Act) and the Cabinet Office is required to consult the Authority before making such an Order (section 6, subsection 3).
- 4. At the meeting on 23 July 2010, the Authority were informed that the Cabinet Office intended to revoke the Official Statistics Order 2009 and replace it with an updated Order. The Authority considered a draft of the Official Statistics Order 2010 and confirmed that it was content for the Order to proceed. The new Order is due to be laid before Parliament shortly and debated in early November, with the intention that it would come into force very soon thereafter. At Annex B there is a list of the bodies that will be included in this Order, which includes a note against each body regarding the Government's recently announced proposed reforms to these bodies.
- 5. Ministers in the devolved administrations are also required under the Act (section 6, subsection 1b) to consult with the Authority about any Orders they intend to make in respect of wholly devolved statistics. The Scottish Government wrote to the Chair on 6 October informing the Authority of their intention to amend the Official Statistics (Scotland) Order 2008 by the inclusion of five additional bodies and, in due course, to include further bodies within the scope of the Scotland Order by making another amendment to it next year. The current amendment should complete its progress through the Scottish parliamentary process by the end of the year. The letter from the Scottish Government and the Chair's reply are at Annex A.
- 6. To date, there have been no Official Statistics Orders made in Wales or in Northern Ireland. The Welsh Assembly Government have informed us that they decided to wait until the arrangements for the statistical governance of ALBs was agreed (see paragraph 8 below) before beginning a process of engagement with them. That process is to start shortly, with the expectation that an Order will be put before the Welsh Assembly no earlier than Spring 2011. The Northern Ireland Executive is currently engaging with ALBs sponsored by their departments and aim to identify those considered suitable for

inclusion in a Northern Ireland Order by the end of 2010 and then to bring an Order in the second half of 2011.

- 7. The effects of Official Statistics Orders are, not only that they bring statistics produced by the non-Crown bodies listed within the statutory remit of the Authority and therefore the *Code of Practice for Official Statistics*, but also that they expand the UK official statistical system and, therefore, the remit of the National Statistician. Many of the bodies concerned will have no previous knowledge of the requirements of the *Code* and may not have professional statisticians producing their statistics.
- 8. In order to address these issues a GSS task force was established to advise the National Statistician and the GSS Heads of Professions (HoPs) Group on how to engage with and support these bodies. The Report (August 2010) of the GSS task force was accepted by HoPs and it recommended that:
 - i. these bodies will engage with the UK statistical system through HoPs in the relevant sponsoring department (in exceptional circumstances a case may be made to the National Statistician for direct representation by an ALB where it has a constitutionally separate relationship with its sponsor department);
 - ii. each body will nominate a Lead Official (LO) for official statistics, who will be responsible for the production of statistical outputs and compliance with the Code and any other relevant statistical legislation relevant and be the 'person responsible' referred to in the Act and secondary legislation;
 - iii. the HoP in the sponsoring department will provide advice, guidance and support to the LO on statistical matters and act as the focal point for communication with the National Statistician and other parts of the Authority;
 - iv. membership of the GSS or the Government Statistician Group (GSG) would not be required of ALB staff but ALBs could nominate appropriately qualified staff for GSG accreditation; and
 - v. GSS training and development opportunities should be made available, subject to payment, to ALB staff.
- 9. The current position of different progress in the four countries does create some anomalies at the UK level. For example:
 - i. statistics produced by the Higher Education Statistics Agency and the Students Loans Company are covered by the *UK Official Statistics Order 2010* for England and by the *Official Statistics Order (Scotland) 2008* for Scotland but those in respect of Wales and Northern Ireland are not currently included in any Order;
 - ii. the Parole Board for England and Wales is covered by the *UK Official Statistics Order 2010* but the equivalent bodies in Scotland and Northern Ireland are not; and
 - iii. the Arts Council of England is included in the UK Order 2010 but the Welsh, Scottish and Northern Ireland bodies are not currently within scope.

10. The Authority may wish to consider how these anomalies should be addressed.

Secretariat, UK Statistics Authority, October 2010

List of Annexes

- Annex A Correspondence with Scottish Government: Official Statistics (Scotland) Order 2008
- Annex B Full list of bodies included in the Official Statistics Order 2010

Annex A Correspondence with Scottish Government: Official Statistics (Scotland) Order 2008

These documents are due to be published on the UK Statistics Authority website in due course.

The documents will be available at:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/reports--correspondence/correspondence/index.html

Annex B Full list of bodies included in the Official Statistics Order 2010

When the *Official Statistics Order 2010* is laid before the UK Parliament a copy will be uploaded on the Authority website.

To see published documents about Official Statistics Orders go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/national-statistician/producers-of-official-statistics/index.html

SA(10)69

Assessment Report: Statistics on Child Protection in Scotland

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website as Assessment Report 67.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/assessment

-report-67---child-protection-in-scotland.pdf

SA(10)70

Assessment Report: Statistics from the National Travel Survey

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-58---national-travel-survey.pdf

SA(10)71

Assessment Report: Statistics on Prescribing and Pharmaceutical Services in England

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-59---prescribing-and-pharmaceutical-services-in-england.pdf

SA(10)72

Assessment Report: Statistics on Prescribing in Scotland

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-60---statistics-on-prescribing-in-scotland.pdf

SA(10)73

Assessment Report: Statistics on Transport in Scotland

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-61---statistics-on-transport-in-scotland.pdf

SA(10)74

Assessment Report: Statistics on Transport in Northern Ireland

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-62---statistics-on-transport-in-northern-ireland.pdf

SA(10)77

Assessment Report: Pensions Statistics

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website as Assessment Report 65.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-65---statistics-on-pensions.pdf

SA(10)75

Assessment Report: Local Government Financial Statistics England

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-63---local-government-financial-statististics.pdf

SA(10)76

Assessment Report: Lifestyle Compendia

This document has been published on the UK Statistics Authority website as Assessment Report 64.

To see the document go to:

http://www.statisticsauthority.gov.uk/assessment/assessment/assessment-reports/ assessment-report-64---lifestyles-statistics-compendium-publications.pdf